
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Community & Leisure 
Cabinet Committee

Members of the Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee of Gravesham Borough Council 
are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Virtually on Wednesday, 3 June 2020 at 7.30 
pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted. Details on 
how Members can attend the meeting will be sent separately.

In response to COVID-19, the Government has legislated to permit remote attendance by Elected
Members at formal meetings. This is conditional on other Elected Members and the public being
able to hear those participating in the meeting. This meeting will be streamed live and can be
watched via Gravesham Borough Council’s YouTube Channel:-
www.youtube.com/graveshamtv

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public. 

5. Coronavirus: Cabinet Portfolio Impact (Pages 9 - 32)

6. Post-COVID 19 Recovery for Gravesend Town Centre (Pages 33 - 46)



7. Arts & Culture Strategy for Gravesham (Pages 47 - 50)

8. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter or urgency. 

9. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any 
items included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view 
of the nature of business to be transacted that if members of the 
public are present during those items, there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act.

Part B

Items likely to be considered in Private

No items. 

Members

Cllr Shane Mochrie-Cox (Chair)
Cllr Tony Rana (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: Helen Ashenden
Ejaz Aslam
Harold Craske
Aaron Elliott
Gary Harding
Emma Morley
Christina Rolles
Peter Scollard

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Community Services Cabinet Committee 

Wednesday, 03 March 2020                                          7:30pm  

Present:

Cllr Shane Mochrie-Cox (Chair) 
Cllr Tony Rana (Vice-Chair) 

Cllrs: Helen Ashenden 
Ejaz Aslam 
Harold Craske 
Aaron Elliott 
Baljit Hayre 
Les Hoskins  
Christina Rolles 
Peter Scollard 

Simon Hookway 
Anita Tysoe  
Adrian Hickmott 
Virginie Whittaker 
Kirsty Gaunt 
Danielle Lock 

Assistant Director (Communities) 
Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) 
Leisure & Resilience Manager 
Town & Tourism Manager 
Community Involvement Officer 
Sport & Recreation Officer 

Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant (Minutes) 

31. Apologies 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Jordan Meade and Cllr Baljit Hayre. Cllr Les 
Hoskins and Cllr Sarah Gow substituted respectively. 

32. Minutes 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Jordan Meade and Cllr Baljit Hayre. Cllr Les 
Hoskins and Cllr Sarah Gow substituted respectively. 

33. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest. 

34. Market Working Group 

The Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) provided copies of the minutes from 
the Member Working Group and the draft Market Strategy which included Member’s key 
aspirations. 

The Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) advised that Members comments from 
the first group meeting were fed into the draft Strategy which was reviewed by Members at 
the second group meeting.  

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee 3.03.2020

2

The Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) explained that the Strategy had been 
split into four strategic objective areas:

 Respecting and delivering against the historic Market Charter, developing food as the 
core offer, supported by traditional and themed market days 

 Preserving the roots of the historical building by celebrating and promoting the 
Borough’s wider historical offer and creating a central hub and focal point for our 
significant tourism offer

 Supporting the changing face of the town centre and local business by assisting 
appropriate new and developing businesses through low cost, low risk, start-up 
space

 Celebrating and supporting our borough’s diverse community through delivering 
events and activities that appeal to a wide audience, promote community cohesion 
and social inclusion.

The Chair thanked the Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) for her hard work in 
creating the Market Strategy and the Members for their thorough debates held during the 
Working Group meetings.  

The Committee approved the draft market strategy. 

35. Community Event Grant Scheme 

The Community Involvement Officer advised that there had been discussion in recent 
months about extending the Community Event Programme to see what demand there was to 
put on additional smaller events during the year. Large events like Chinese New Year, EID, 
Black History Month and Diwali have been supported by the Council in previous years. 

A simple application form has been created based around the corporate plan priorities which 
groups can use to apply for funding for certain events; the form allows up to £2000 to be 
requested but organisations have also been encouraged to apply for the smaller grant 
funding as there is limited amounts of large funding available. 

The application form has already been sent over to the organisations that held large events 
last year and those that have already expressed an interest in holding events for 2020; three 
interests have been received so far and the form will be circulated more widely in the future. 
All applicants will be encouraged to speak to the Community Involvement Officer before 
filling out the form so that they can be given guidance as to what resources their type of 
event requires.  

The Community Involvement Officer advised that the deadline process was still being 
created but currently there were four deadlines for submission of the application form with 
the first set for the end of March 2020. 

The Service Manager (Customer & Theatre Services) further explained that the intent was to 
open the process up to the wider community to give certain groups the opportunity to hold 
events they may not previously have been able too as well as advising them of what funding 
was available to them. The form will ask for information about the event such as what 
outcomes does the event hope to achieve, what its educational value is and how it will 
benefit the community etc. 

Page 4



Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee 3.03.2020

3

The Chair welcomed the prospect of encouraging other groups within Gravesham to hold 
important events and special anniversaries. 

The Community Involvement Officer advised that the intention was to send round supported 
information which informed organisations of other places that they could access additional 
funding aside from the Council. 

In response to several Members questions, the Service Manager (Customer & Theatre 
Services) and the Community Involvement Officer explained that: 

 The funding will commence in the new financial year on 01 April 2020; no funds have 
been allocated for any 2020 events yet 

 In previous years, up to three large events have been funded £2000 each 
 The Council has supported other events with smaller grant sums; the overall budget 

for community support totals roughly £10,000-£10,500 
 The form itself is very simple and easy to complete and can be filled in on paper or 

electronically; it is only two sides and all event organisers should be able to write 
down their relevant information 

 With regards to environmental impact, the Community Involvement Officer will have 
discussions with every event organiser in order to understand what type of 
environmental mitigation they will require. She can then give advice on what will be 
necessary such as recycling bins on site, green space protection and litter pick up etc 

The Chair requested that the form and associated criteria for applying for an event be 
circulated to Members.  

The Committee gave their support to moving forward with this scheme.  

36. Dickens 150 

Members were updated on the plans for Gravesham to commemorate the 150th anniversary 
of Charles Dickens’ death in 2020. 

The Town & Tourism Manager advised that since September 2019, when the initial report on 
the Dicken’s 150 festival was submitted to the Committee, there had been several updates 
on the progression of the programme which were listed in the report at section two. 

The Town & Tourism Manager had been by contacted Geoff Ettridge from the Ramblers 
group and his group will be conducting three walks in Cobham and from Cobham to 
Rochester throughout June and August. The walks are free and will include talks about 
Charles Dickens relationship with Gravesham and Medway; however it should be noted that 
they are also raising money for a chalet for their group. 

Gabriella Björk Gabbitas, from Owletts, has written a script for a self-guided interactive walk 
around the village of Cobham, involving actors playing some well-known Dickens’ 
characters. Rosemary Dymond has a part in the interactive walk and will be one of the 
dressed up characters. 

The Town & Tourism Manager advised that dates for the Dickens Theatre Company’s 
performance had been set and bookings had already been received. 

Page 5



Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee 3.03.2020

4

The Town & Tourism Manager explained that a few quotes had been received for the 
Dickens’ Quote Project but the aim was to reach 150; Councillors were encouraged to 
contribute. 

The Town & Tourism Manager advised that the Sport & Recreation Officer had received 
interest from Gravesend Cricket Club about putting on a Dickensian Cricket Match. Further 
updates on that will be available soon. 

The programme was praised by the Committee but one Member stressed the importance of 
a Council representative attending the Westminster Abbey service for the 150th anniversary 
as well as the Rochester Cathedral Service. 

The Town & Tourism Manager received confirmation on Monday that the service at 
Rochester Cathedral was going to be held on 14 June 2020 at 3:15pm and understands that 
it is going to be open to the public, so invites may not be required. 

With regards to the service at Westminster Abbey, the Council were looking into it and will 
be contacting the Dickens Fellowship for a possible Westminster contact. 

The Committee thanked the work of the officers present and noted the development of the 
Dickens 150 programme.  

37. Sports Development 

Members were updated on the current sports development work that was taking place 
across the Borough. 

The Sport & Recreation Officer highlighted the following key points from the report: 

 Sport England produce the Active Lives Report that is published twice a year and 
offers a national, regional and local picture of the physical activity levels of the 
population. A more detailed version with breakdowns on various demographics and 
wellbeing levels is available online 

 The survey uses a large sample size of 170,000 people and the survey influences 
local and national government policy on sport activity. Typically, Gravesham has 
always been towards the bottom of the activity chart for Kent, but that is no longer the 
case, with  Ashford now the lowest 

 Kent Sport has a range of web-based support platforms, including an online Activity 
Finder, which enables clubs to promote their activities for free and also helps 
individuals to search for available sporting opportunities across the borough and the 
wider county. Gravesham clubs were under represented on the website so an article 
was produced for the latest addition of Your Borough, encouraging sports clubs to 
sign up to the Activity Finder and to enable individuals to ‘find their sport’. As of 03 
March 2020, 37 clubs have registered and 20 local sessions have been added to the 
Activity Finder 

 As its international Women’s Day on 06 March 2020, the local parks have been 
encouraged to turn their running sessions over to women for the day. The runs at 
Cyclopark and Shorne Country park have been promoted via social media posts 

 The World Challenge Event will officially launch on the 27 April 2020 at Cyclopark; 
the project engages with those aged 16+ with a learning disability and offers them 
the opportunity to participate in a sports activity 

Page 6



Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee 3.03.2020

5

 Walking Netball has been doing extremely well especially among older women giving 
them something to take part in and look forward too as a social event. The team has 
expressed an interest in attending the Walking Netball Festival on the 27 April at the 
Kings Sports Centre in Rochester 

The Committee welcomed the sports development activity that is taking place within the 
Borough and noted the provision across the Borough delivered by the Council and other 
Partners.

38. Gravesham Local Services 

The Committee received a report detailing the local services available to residents in 
Gravesham. 

The Assistant Director (Communities) explained that the document covered a wide range of 
services available in Gravesham including health & wellbeing, welfare, housing, economic 
agencies, youth groups, transport services and help lines. 

The Assistant Director (Communities) advised that Lauren Wallis, Committee Services 
Officer should be commended for pulling the draft document together as it took considerable 
time and effort. The document will be exceedingly useful for residents of the Borough and 
will help to boost the Council’s image as a trusted source of information. 

Due to the wide breadth of services and sheer information, the challenge will be keeping all 
of the relevant addresses and contact numbers up to date; the intention is for the document 
to be uploaded to the website and the organisations can update their information 
themselves. In its current form, it will be updated every six months with a time stamp.   

Following a Members suggestion that it be included in the Your Borough magazine, the 
Chair advised that it would be too big to add to the magazine leading to increased printing 
costs and it wasn’t eco-friendly. A link can be added to the Your Borough magazine advising 
the public of the services available. Additionally, the Chair asked that a small number of hard 
copies be printed every six months and left in the Members area that could be given to 
constituents by Members.     

Following a few suggestions, the Chair asked that any comments and amendments needed 
to be made to the document be sent to Lauren Wallis to action. 

The Committee thanked Lauren Wallis for her hard work in putting together the document 
and asked that it be circulated to all Members. 

Members noted the content within the report. 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8:11pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Part 1 – Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee

Date: 3 June 2020 

Reporting officer: Assistant Director (Communities)

Subject: Coronavirus: Cabinet Portfolio Impact

Purpose and summary of report: 
To provide an overview of the impact of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic upon the 
practical delivery of the respective services within the Community & Leisure Cabinet portfolio.

Recommendations:
That the Committee make its views known on the actions undertaken in response to the 
impacts of COVID-19 on the services within the Community & Leisure portfolio.

1. Background

1.1 The Covid-19 pandemic has had the most profound impact on the daily lives of 
UK residents of any event this century; significant societal restrictions on 
movement and association, coupled with intense harm to the national economy 
through the enforced closure of businesses and an inevitable loss of jobs.

1.2 Collectively, the impact of Covid-19 is one of significant damage to the health and 
well being of the Gravesham community and, equally, presents a substantial 
challenge to the future sustainability of the council and its essential frontline 
community services. 

1.3 On 12 May 2020, a report was considered by Council outlining the social and 
economic impact the pandemic has had upon the Gravesham community and 
providing details of the council’s comprehensive community support offer during 
the period. At that meeting, Council unanimously put on record its gratitude to all 
those involved across all sectors in the outstanding response to the global Covid-
19 pandemic and, equally, expressed condolences to those who have lost loved 
ones in this tragic event. 

1.4 This report aims to provide a focus on the Community & Leisure portfolio in 
regards to the practical impact of the pandemic and, specifically, to provide clarity 
on what new policies or amended working practices were established in order to 
adapt to what was, and continues to be, a rapidly evolving challenge.

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



2

2. Protecting shielded and other vulnerable residents

2.1 Central to the Council’s Covid-19 response has been the need to ensure 
appropriate support interventions for the most vulnerable local residents and, 
equally, to take on the responsibility for a timely and effective package of business 
support measures. An overview of how the council and its community partners 
have risen to the challenge is set out below.

2.2 In the space of a few days, the council had established its Vulnerable Persons 
Team of officers to manage incoming data about the clinically vulnerable, shielded 
community and to provide essential support to those affected by the Covid 
pandemic across the Borough. 

2.3 As at the 21 May 2020, the council had received just under 4,000 referrals from 
the NHS relating to individuals who are clinically vulnerable and therefore 
shielding for 12 weeks, in addition to over 3,500 who either contacted the council 
directly or been referred by family, friends or neighbours.  Officers have also made 
in the region of 9000 calls out to check on the welfare of those most in need.

2.4 In response, there had been over 1700 ‘interventions’ or provisions of support 
ranging from volunteers to support shopping or the collection of prescriptions, 
befriending services, food parcels and welfare visits. Appendices 2 & 3 provides 
further statistical information. 

2.5 Additionally, in line with government guidance aimed at protecting rough sleepers 
and reducing the number of people on the streets during the pandemic, the 
Housing Service has worked hard to secure much needed temporary 
accommodation. At its peak, 33 rough sleepers were temporarily housed, and 
efforts to find permanent arrangements that are eligible for housing benefit 
commenced. The number of approaches for homelessness support has returned 
to normal, pre-Covid-19 levels, with weekly fluctuations to that support need. 

2.6 It should be noted that the response to the Covid-19 pandemic is an ongoing effort 
that will not immediately end when societal restrictions are lifted; the council has a 
moral duty to continue its support for the community. Moreover, those who have 
received council assistance will invariably have formed a degree of dependency 
on its support and a strategy is being developed to address this ongoing need.

2.7 The Vulnerable Persons Team has proved hugely successful, largely due to the 
outstanding efforts involving officers putting aside their day job and doing 
whatever has been asked by the council to meet the needs of the local 
community. 

2.8 Underpinning the Vulnerable Persons Team it must also be noted that 
Gravesham’s community and voluntary sector, while facing significant pressures 
on funding and staff capacity, has been a critical element to the council’s 
response, both in protecting the most vulnerable and in their efforts in tackling the 
social impacts of the crisis. For example, Alzheimer’s and Dementia Support 
services has provided a befriending service to lonely and vulnerable people 
through regular telephone contacts to reassure those who are extremely anxious.

2.9 In seeking to mitigate the impact on the council and, more broadly, the local 
community, it is essential the council designs a fully informed Recovery Plan.  
Building on the community intelligence gained by the authority during its response 
activities, a suite of initiatives will be specifically designed to help drive the most 
effective delivery of council resources at this most challenging of times. The 
Recovery Plan, once prepared, will be presented to Cabinet for consideration at 
the appropriate time.

Page 10



3

3. Community Engagement

3.1 A series of community events, delivered as part of the Council’s community 
engagement work have had to be cancelled or deferred.  These include grant 
funded projects such as the Altogether Stronger community events as well as 
smaller community celebrations and activities such as litter picks or planting 
competitions. Engagement activity will continue to be reviewed in the light of the 
implementation of the Government’s recovery strategy. Work has commenced on 
the council’s community engagement strategy and action plan and this will be 
informed by the Covid-19 work.

4. The Woodville

4.1 The Woodville complex, including studio,   Blake Gallery, Spotlites Café and Kent 
Bar all closed 23 March 2020.  This has had a considerable impact on the overall 
programme including shows, cinema, exhibitions and private hire bookings.

4.2 Audience development, youth and arts outreach development has also ceased 
due to the restrictions, although the team have worked hard to maintain a social 
media presence, introducing story time, children’s online workshops and trivia 
quizzes.   The Woodville team launched Woodville TV in the first two weeks of 
lockdown with local content from the Woodville team and volunteers. This has 
been popular with our audience base achieving over 15 hours of viewing in the 
first three weeks of launch. 

4.3 Gravesham Arts Salon has continued to meet virtually to discuss, explore and 
share ideas about the re-opening of the arts and culture offer in the future.  
Members have responded positively to the artists call out for Make It – Grants 
proposed by the Council.

4.4 Clearly the current measures have had an impact of programming for the 
remainder of this year, with many touring or visiting productions having been 
cancelled. Most promoters are either moving their shows to Spring 2021 or 
keeping back up dates where possible. However, as and when restrictions are 
lifted for Leisure facilities, there are a number of potential opportunities including 
ongoing live screenings or the opening of restricted number performances that will 
enable the Woodville to re-start its offer.

4.5 According to the Government’s recovery strategy the earliest date for reopening of 
leisure facilities will be 4 July, subject to the Government’s five tests being met 
and ability to meet COVID-19 Secure guidelines.  A draft cinema schedule is 
being developed with social distancing in the auditorium.

5. Arts & Cultural Development

5.1 There has been considerable impact on arts development across the sector with 
many projects and events being postponed or delivery cancelled. The visual arts 
element of the Dickens 150 anniversary project has been postponed till October 
but may, depending on restrictions, be moved to early 2021.

5.2 The new Make It - Arts Grants scheme has been launched to the creative 
community, the deadline for proposals is 29 May 2020. The scheme has been 
developed to support and nurture local artists and creatives, giving them the 
opportunity to develop ideas and advance their own practises during this difficult 
time.

5.3 A local artist has been commission to begin planning and research stage on a 
sculptural / festival piece which will take the form of wings, and feature 

Page 11



4

photographs sent in from the public of positive experiences captured during the 
lockdown period. It is anticipated that the piece will be created by November 
where it will be on display and possibly feature within the Christmas Lights 
parade, should this go ahead. Additional public engagement elements of the 
project will take place, if restrictions allow.

5.4 St Andrew’s Arts Centre has been closed and Gravesham Arts Council’s 
programme severely impacted.

5.5 The Council is taking steps to create a new Arts Centre within St George’s and if 
the centre is able to open in the Autumn then it will be the first Make It hub forming 
the Make It cluster. Earlier consultation showed that making spaces were the 
over-riding need to the arts and creative community

5.6 Work has commenced on Gravesham’s Arts & Cultural Strategy with consultation 
surveys published to residents and stake-holders with a deadline for submissions 
of the end of May. A questionnaire has been sent out to Gravesham’s cultural 
assets and a steering group has also been appointed who are in the process of 
completing some scoping questions to shape the strategy going forward. The 
development of this strategy is getting positive feedback from the responses to the 
survey so far. A vision and a set of priorities have been developed and form a 
separate discussion paper going to this Cabinet Committee.

5.7 Major arts festivals deferred to 2021, including arts installations within England’s 
Creative Coast and Estuary 2020 (now Spring 2021).

5.8 Riverside Fringe – the Gravesham Fringe festival, part funded by Arts Council 
England (ACE) was intended to run at the same time as Estuary 2020 as part of 
the associate programme. All ACE grant funding has been redirected to the 
artists’ emergency fund set up to support those affected by Covid-19. The 
decision has been taken to remain in tandem with the Estuary Festival and to 
apply for funding to rung the Fringe in 2021. All artists have been contacted and 
are keen to be part of the festival in the New Year.

5.9 Regular communications have been sent out via social media and email lists 
(Gravesham Arts Salon members) to artists and creatives highlighting the 
availability of Covid-19 grants from Government agencies such as Arts Council 
England and the National Lottery Heritage Fund. One local arts organisation has 
been successful in applying for business support from Arts Council England. 

6. Events Programme

6.1 The government has prohibited by law all public gatherings of more than two 
people.  Events have had to be cancelled, including the annual St George’s Day 
parade and Scouts Parade.  Similarly community events, including Vaisakhi, Pride 
and outdoor screenings have had to be cancelled.

6.2 Following Government guidance, local VE Day commemorations did not take 
place, but memories and resources to mark the occasion were posted online, 
Union flags were hung in the Town Centre and the Clocktower lit on the 8 May.

6.3 The council continues to review its programme of major events in the light of 
Government guidance on mass gatherings.  Confirmations will be forthcoming in 
due course in respect of the Riverside Festival, Fireworks Display, Remembrance 
events and the Christmas Lights Switch-On parade and programme.

6.4 Events have a key role to play in supporting recovery and strengthening 
community.  However, it is clear from the Government’s Covid-19 strategy that it is 
far too early to encourage larger public gatherings.

Page 12



5

7. Heritage

7.1 The council’s heritage properties namely, New Tavern Fort, Milton Chantry were 
due to open for the summer season on the 4th April, they have remained closed to 
the public with weekly checks being carried out by volunteers. This closure will 
have considerable impact on visitor numbers for this period. The Cold War Bunker 
in Woodlands Park held two guided tours prior to lock down in February and early 
March, the site is now also closed to the public.

7.2 English Heritage normally carry out a site check to Milton Chantry for which they 
hold a deed of guardianship over in April, due to their staff restrictions this was 
done by the Arts and Heritage Officer and fed back to EH. No major issues were 
reported other than a need for the external re-painting of all doors and windows 
which have severely degraded.

7.3 Milton Chantry experienced a major water leak in December due to a new water 
meter being installed. Scheduled consent had to be applied for before any works 
could start and with the outbreak of Covid19 repair works have not taken place. 
We are awaiting an update to this situation. The property does not have any 
running water at this current time.

7.4 A Volunteer from Thames Defence Heritage continues to visit the three sites 
weekly in accordance to their Service Level Agreement. Should the sites be given 
permission to re-open in July, discussions will take place with TDH on volunteer 
availability and consideration will be made to design of each site and how social 
distancing can be applied. Hand sanitisers have been ordered for the three sites 
together with advice posters.

7.5 Work is underway to prepare a tourism and heritage strategy which will assist in 
the next steps in recovery. 

8. Gravesend Borough Market

8.1 Whilst food shops and take-aways were allowed to continue trading, the decision 
was taken to close the Market building. The majority of its successful market days 
involved food and entertainment, focussing on drawing high footfall to support the 
traders. Whilst a food only market was offered at the beginning of restrictions 
coming in, the traders were uncomfortable and took the decision to temporarily 
cease trading.

8.2 Prior to restrictions, the strategy for the Market was to focus on food as the core 
offer, building on the successful and newly established Saturday food market 
alongside permanent food traders. With restrictions being lifted, the team are 
working to re-establish traders in the Market and support the delivery of a better 
food shopping experience, through physical experience and fresh produce. 

8.3 Plans are also in place to develop a co-operative shop offer running alongside a 
new shopping experience delivered through an app enabling customers to pre-
purchase a range of items and collect them in one place.

8.4 Recently issued Government guidance has given the go ahead for reopening of 
outdoor and indoor markets in June, subject to Covid secure measures being put 
in place.

9. Sports Development

9.1 As a result of Covid 19 use of outdoor sports pitches and sports development 
activity ceased.

Page 13



6

9.2 This football season was brought to an early end and reimbursement of pitch fees 
for the reminder of the season is being considered (needed?).  The cricket season 
has not commenced, the cricket square at Wombwell Park will not be used and 
the annual Kwik Cricket Schools Tournament at Bat and Ball Cricket Ground, in 
partnership with Kent Cricket, has been cancelled.

9.3 Horticultural Services continue to maintain and feed council owned football pitches 
at Kings Farm, Cascades, Culverstone, Springhead Recreation Ground and 
Istead Rise. Consideration is being given to pitch improvements at Springhead, 
given the current hiatus on pitch use.

9.4 Normally a Summer Fun Guide would be published to encourage sports 
development activity over the school summer holiday.  That cannot take place in 
the same form with current public health restrictions, however an eye is being kept 
on whether activity resources can be made available to family groups given 
relaxations on use of parks and open spaces, subject to meeting social distance 
requirements.

9.5 Contact has been maintained with local sports organisations, some of which if 
they have rateable premises have been eligible for Covid -19 business grants.

9.6 Following the issue of Government guidance, tennis courts have been reopened 
at Windmill Hill, Wombell Park and Woodlands Park.  Basket ball nets are again 
available at Woodlands Park.

9.7 Weekly walking football and walking netball sessions, organised with The Gr@nd 
and Cygnet Leisure Centre have ceased.  Park Run events at Cyclopark and 
Shorne Woods Country Park remain suspended.

9.1 The Council’s parks remain open for exercise.  The car park at Camer Park has 
been reopened and discussion is taking place with Kent Police in respect of 
reopening Fort Gardens.  Additional opportunities for encouraging outdoor 
exercise, whilst maintaining Covid-19 rules are being considered.

9.2 Contact has been maintained with local sports organisations, some of which if 
they have rateable premises have been eligible for Covid -19 business grants.  
The grant assistance from Sport England has been communicated to local clubs 
and an Everyday Active small grants fund, made available via Kent Sport, will be 
promoted shortly.

10. Gravesham Community Leisure Limited (GCLL)

10.1 Cascades Leisure Centre and Cygnet Leisure Centre have been closed for the 
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic.

10.2 GCLL experienced a dramatic reduction in usage during the two weeks prior to 
actual closure, due primarily to the nation being instructed to stay at home, protect 
the NHS and save lives.  As part of the Government instruction to close the leisure 
centres from 20th March, the new furlough employment scheme was offered, 
which GCLL took advantage of for the vast majority of staff. During this particular 
period, GCLL kept on a few key staff in order to protect the centres, as to provide 
a resource of expertise for daily operation, monitoring and a presence at each 
site. It currently provides daily supervision of the council’s roofing contractors at 
Cascades so that these works can compliantly continue. It also continues to carry 
out necessary repairs caused by the buildings being closed, carrying out 
horticultural and other ground works to keep the sites presentable.  

Page 14



7

10.3 At the onset of the lockdown, GCLL donated its entire stocks of PPE to Darent 
Valley Hospital and the café/vending stocks to a local food bank. It also launched 
to its members, and wider local community, an At Home Health App with 
nutritional, exercise and mindfulness information to help keep local people fit and 
healthy.

10.4 The date of re-opening the centres is obviously unknown at this stage, as are the 
constraints that may or may not be placed on re-opening. For example, social 
distancing is likely to be one of the constraints which could dictate what activity 
areas can be re-opened and also the number of customers allowed to participate 
at any one time. This is likely to affect normal income and expenditure targets for 
the centres going forward, on top of the financial issues that the centres have 
endured just prior to and during the lockdown period itself. The council continues 
to keep in close contact with the management team at GCLL, offering support 
where feasible in order to make sure that the service going forward can be 
sustained in the future. 

10.5 The Gr@nd 

10.6 Despite the challenges presented by Covid 19 and closure of the physical building 
during lockdown, the Gr@nd has innovated and on an incredibly tight timescale, 
has adapted nearly every service. A variety of platforms such as Zoom, tik tok, 
facebook, letters and  telephone are being utilised allowing people of all ages to 
access services, especially those in need. Tutorial sessions for Job Club, Silver 
Surfers, Don’t Sit Get Fit, Gentle Exercise and Relaxation have been posted on 
the Gr@nd website www.thegrand.org.uk.

10.7 Via a dedicated mobile, young people have 24/7 access to a youth worker so that 
they can speak to someone when they feel they are in need. As a result, youth 
workers are delivering food parcels to young people three times a week and two 
young people have been referred to social services, one of which had been made 
homeless. 

10.8 Policies and guidance have been updated to include social distancing, and 
engagement via Zoom and social media to safeguard youth workers and young 
people. 

10.9 Between 1 May and 18 May 2020, fifty youth sessions have been delivered and 
358 different young people have engaged. This includes ten young people 
receiving over the phone counselling via the Active Listening Service. The One 
You Kent service supported 47 existing clients and 14 new people either over the 
telephone or online. We are currently working on creating virtual ESOL classes ad 
a Zoom coffee morning for our older service users. 

10.10 Gifted Young Generation (GYG) Auditions took place in March 2020. Workshops 
and committee meetings continue to take place via zoom and internet tutorials. 
The groups are working hard raise the spirits of other young people and all 
members of the community via a virtual choir and through singing ‘doorstep 
dedications’ on a Thursday evening to neighbours and passing public. 

10.11 The GYG Committee are working on an alternative virtual GYG 2020 production. 
Whilst observing social distancing, performers will be professionally filmed and 
once a date is agreed all the acts will be streamed on a designated day via 
YouTube Live TV. 

10.12 The GYG 2020 Virtual show will continual to focus on how the arts support 
positive Mental Health and Wellbeing and a GoFundMe page will be launched to 

Page 15

http://www.thegrand.org.uk/


8

fundraise for the active listening service. A programme of nationwide promotion 
will be designed and launched via post and social media. 

10.13 KCC Public Health funding has been approved for 2020-2021. This funding is 
primarily utilised to deliver the One You Kent Service. 

10.14 Since the lockdown took place on March 23rd the Gr@nd has increased social 
media followers by 270. To put this into context the increase in the three months 
prior to lockdown was 46. 

10.15 The content which has been posted has been seen (reached) 2928 people. 
During the 28 days prior the lockdown, posts reached 380 people.

10.16 An application has been submitted to MHCLG’s ESOL for Integration Fund by the 
Council in collaboration with The Gr@nd to extend ESOL locally, taking into 
account the need to deliver differently in a COVID-19 context.  Funding 
announcements are likely to be made known in the early Summer.

11. Gravesham Youth Council 

11.1 Since lockdown, contact with the 16 young people who are members of 
Gravesham Youth Council (GYC) has been maintained via a WhatsApp group. 
Ongoing support for the young people and their mental health and wellbeing has 
been offered in addition to discussing GYC matters. 

11.2 Two GYC meetings have taken place via Zoom, with 6 young people attending. 
The groups focus is promotion of GYC online and Clean Air Day on June 20th 
2020. The group are exploring the possibility of asking young people how they feel 
the lockdown has affected climate change. 

11.3 2020 is the 20th year of the Gravesham Youth Council and its predecessor and 
the council is looking to celebrate this in an appropriate way as soon as 
practicable.

12. Tourism

12.1 The Visitor information Centre in the Borough Market closed on 23 March, visitor 
accommodation and attractions closed.  Visits to www.visitgravesend.co.uk have 
declined, but visitor information staff have continued to develop relationships with 
customers via social media, posting information updates, local images, history 
resources and interesting facts about the area – ‘Do You Know…’.  These have 
resulted in an increase in Twitter, Facebook and Instagram followers. 

12.2 The Tourism & Town Twinning Manager has kept in contact with visitor attractions 
and accommodation members of the local tourism network, sharing information 
and receiving updates, plans for reopening hotels for key worker bookings, etc.

12.3 Cancellation of events and festivals, including a deferment of the Dickens 150 
programme and guided tours has had a major impact on visitor related activity, but 
clearly not as significant as those areas of the country which are heavily 
dependent on the visitor economy.

12.4 Visit Kent, of which Gravesham is a partner, have been supporting tourism 
businesses in Kent, communicating Government business support and hosting 
webinars to help businesses adapt to COVID-19 situation.  A number of tourism 
related businesses, including visitor accommodation have been eligible for and 
received COVID-19 business grants.

Page 16

http://www.visitgravesend.co.uk/
https://twitter.com/visit_gravesend
https://www.facebook.com/VisitGravesend
https://www.instagram.com/visit_gravesend


9

12.5 Recovery of the visitor economy is going to be very slow.  Any re-opening of 
visitor related premises is unlikely to take place before 4 July and is likely to be far 
longer.  Many of Gravesham’s visitor attractions and guided tours are dependent 
on volunteers, many within the more vulnerable groups and hence some reticence 
in reopening.

12.6 Work has commenced on the tourism and heritage aspects to complement  
Gravesham’s arts and cultural strategy, presenting an opportunity to consider 
what steps can be taken to enable recovery and strengthen Gravesham’s visitor 
economy over the longer term.

13. Town Twinning 

13.1 Planned visits by the Gravesham Town Twinning Association to Neumunster and 
from Chesterfield and Cambrai have been cancelled and a Civic Visit to 
Neumunster in September to mark 40 years of twinning has been deferred.

13.2 A video conference was held between Gravesham and representatives of its Twin 
Towns and further meetings are planned.

14. Community Safety

14.1 There has been some impact on the nature of crime and ASB during the lockdown 
period.  Analysis of Kent Police monthly recorded crime and ASB data clearly 
illustrates that COVID-19 has had an impact.

14.2 As is the case nationally, certain offences have seen reductions e.g. shoplifting – 
many businesses have remained closed and fewer people on the streets means 
higher visibility; residential burglary - many more people staying or working at 
home – reducing opportunities for burglaries to be committed without a 
considerably higher risk of detection.  The total crime figure has fallen 
substantially and violent crime levels have remained stable.
Monthly Kent Police recorded crime data (April 2019-April 2020)

Offence 
category

Apr 20 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 19 Impact

Total crime 873 1,108 1,059 1,078 1,020 Reduction

Violent crime 429 450 437 453 419 Stable

Burglary 
Residential

35 48 56 63 58 Reduction

Shoplifting 30 64 78 56 41 Reduction

Domestic 
abuse

334 264 248 304 300 Stable/marginal 
increase

Drugs - 
Possession

26 27 10 12 5 Increase

Public order 
offences

69 81 91 91 70 Stable

ASB 553 225 209 251 225 Significant 
Increase

Page 17



10

14.3 One offence category that does appear to have fluctuated is that of drugs 
possession, the figure having increased again in April 2020.  However, individuals 
in possession of drugs (whether they are on foot or in vehicles) are likely to have 
been much more visible in public places during lockdown and consequently, more 
easily attracted Police attention.

14.4 Whilst nationally there has been some focus on the increase in the number of 
domestic abuse cases, the monthly figure recorded locally has remained fairly 
stable, suggesting a smaller increase than might be expected.  Information from 
local domestic abuse services does suggest that they have seen an increase in 
contact from potential victims wanting advice and support and greater traffic on 
helplines and websites, but this does not appear to have resulted in a significant 
increase in the number of cases reported to Police.

14.5 The impact on ASB is in stark contrast to recorded crime: the number of offences 
recorded in April 2020 is more than twice the average monthly figure recorded 
locally (whilst the number of public order offences has remained stable/fallen 
slightly).  The majority of the increase in ASB is associated with more people 
being at home, including more noise nuisance, complaints about bonfires – an 
increase due to closure of waste recycling centres – and directly related to 
breaches of COVID-19 restrictions with gatherings being reported as ASB.  Work 
has continued to progress in respect of actions in support of a co-ordinated 
response to ASB as set out in the ASB strategy adopted earlier this year. 

14.6 Initially, both the Council’s Community Safety Unit and Kent Police received 
numerous calls in respect of groups gathering in parks and open spaces and not 
observing the Government guidance.  Kent Police gave all key areas e.g. 
Promenade, Wombwell Park, Woodlands Park, attention and adopted a policy of 
‘Engage, Explain, Educate, Enforce’.  Some fines were issued.

14.7 Local drug and alcohol dependent individuals who are also homeless/sleeping 
rough were provided with temporary accommodation wherever possible to reduce 
the risk of spreading the virus.  Available emergency accommodation is very 
limited and this has led to a large number of people all being placed in 2-3 local 
B&Bs e.g. the Shamrock (housing 29 homeless people, many of which have 
drug/alcohol related issues and the remainder who have vulnerabilities due to 
other personal characteristics e.g. mental health issues. 

14.8 Heavy concentration of drug and alcohol dependent individuals, some of which 
were provided with temporary accommodation by the Council under its COVID-19 
responsibilities has been linked to an increasing level of ASB (street drinking, 
rowdy/noisy gathering, drug dealing/drug use) in some areas of the Town.  
Attention has been given to these locations by Kent Police (both operational and 
GBC Licensing and Police Licensing) are in the process of visiting all premises 
selling alcohol and carrying out compliance checks.

14.9 An increase in domestic abuse nationally (insert figure) as been reported as a 
result of the ‘lock-down’ and there is concern that demands for support services 
will continue to rise in a prolonged COVID-19 situation.  Local figures indicate that 
the number of cases have declined (insert figure) and work is being undertaken to 
understand why that is so. The Home Office ‘Altogether Safer’ (Violence Against 
Women and Girls) project has come to an end and the MHCLG funded Step 
Change Project is drawing to an end.  The local domestic abuse service – 
Choices – is applying to the Government funds that have been made available to 
Domestic Abuse charities to enable the project to continue.

14.10 High priority multi-agency meetings in respect of the Gravesham Vulnerability 
Panel and the Gravesham Serious Organised Crime Group have met by ‘dial-in’.

14.11 The Safer Place Officers (SPOs) adapted their duties in light of COVID-19.  
Issuing of FPNs for littering and the SPOs have been assisting with the delivery of 
emergency food parcels to vulnerable residents.  They have continued to 

Page 18



11

complete street checks and visiting those locations drawn to their attention as 
experiencing an increase in fly-tipping.

15. Performance

15.1 In its response to Covid-19, the corporate Management Team introduced a 
dedicated suite of performance indicators. The aim was to enable early and 
targeted intervention and redirection of resources where it was needed to those 
critical services deemed underperforming. 

15.2 In consideration of the practical challenges outlined in this report, relevant 
performance monitoring related to this portfolio included:

CV8 – Total residents being supported through the Vulnerable Persons project.

CV9 – Total residents receiving a Covid-19 support intervention via Customer 
Services

CV27 – Total reported Anti-Social Behaviour incidents.

15.3 These are shown in Appendix 4.

15.4 Outside of this operational suite, in order to maintain delivery against the council’s 
Corporate Plan, monitoring against the adopted Performance Management 
Framework was maintained throughout. Members will subsequently be presented 
with the latest quarterly report for consideration. 

16. Next steps 

16.1 The last few months have been a challenging time for services within the 
Community & Leisure portfolio.  It has been a time not only dominated by a need 
to respond quickly to the crisis as it developed, but also to take stock and to 
progress a number of new initiatives, building on the achievements within this 
portfolio over the last year and setting the foundations for recovery. 

16.2 A fuller appraisal of the impact on services, especially in respect of those which 
generate income for the council, will not be fully possible until later in the year.  It 
is also clear that this has also had a huge impact on the council’s partners who 
make a significant contribution towards activity and services within this portfolio.

16.3 Steps are being taken to draw together key actions to be included in the Council’s 
overall Covid-19 Recovery Programme.

Page 19



12

IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1

Legal The Coronavirus Act 2020 is the Government’s main legislative change in
response to the pandemic. Most of its provisions came into effect on 25 March 
2020, but detailed further legislation in the form of statutory instruments, and 
government guidance have been issued since that date and continue to be 
published. This is identified at section 2 to this report. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

No specific implications at this stage.

Risk Assessment No specific implications at this stage.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
No

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
N/A

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
N/A

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan #2 Place

Crime and Disorder As set out in Section 15 of the report.

Digital and website 
implications

Updates provided via digital and website as noted in the report.

Page 20

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


13

IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

No specific implications at this stage.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2  - Community Response Statistics

Contacts & Interventions

Total contacts to GBC 3503

Total NHS/extremely vulnerable cases 3935 7438

Total support / interventions 1743

Contact method

Advice Line 1306

Out of hours calls 45

Quick stats CCC 1247

KCC referral 167

Covid19 web form 738 3503

Response / intervention

Cases handled by Volunteer Centre 735

Cases handled by GBC 309

Befriending 87

Welfare visits / vulnerable calls 47

Door knocks by GBC 406

Door knocks by Kent Police 29

NHS food boxes 19

GBC food boxes 111 1743

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Total contacts to GBC Total NHS/extremely
vulnerable cases

Total support /
interventions

Series1

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Advice Line Out of hours
calls

Quick stats
CCC

KCC referral Covid19 web
form

Series1

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800

Series1

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



MT Monitoring Stats

COVID 19 - SHIELDED AND EXTREMLEY VULNERABLE PERSONS

- MONITORING STATS FOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

DATA AT: 20-May-20

Total Number of Shielded Referrals 2409 cases

71 

93 

117 

19 

35 

85 

123 

88 

43 

113 

150 

48 

56 

45 

38 

7 

86 

16 

84 

68 

28 

150 

30 
33 

46 

24 

33 

25 23 

107 

63 

110 

48 

29 29 

2 

69 

25 
22 22 

9 

2 

35 

9 
4 

10 
6 7 

2 2 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
O

. R
e

fe
rr

al
s 

Date 

Number of NHS Referrals Received each day (SHIELDED) 

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 1 of 6

P
age 25



MT Monitoring Stats

NOTE: From 28 April Alzheimer & Dementia have taken on all 'Red' case follow-up calls, except those 

where GBC had already commenced the follow up process.

0% 

8% 

13% 

66% 

2% 
10% 

1% 

Action required/Taken on Referrals (SHIELDED) 

RED Rating

AMBER rating

GREEN rating

Out of the Borough/No contact required/Duplicates

Number still requiring contact to be made

Referred to A&D Support

Referred to Befriending

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 2 of 6

P
age 26



MT Monitoring Stats

5 

34 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

No telephone number/incorrect number Initial contact - no response

N
u

m
b

e
r 

Number still requiring contact (Shielded) 

2 

15 

0 

17 

3 2 

10 

3 

41 

0 

16 

6 
12 

22 

38 

100 

32 

48 

12 

99 

113 

16 

109 

32 

74 

33 

68 

36 

84 

46 

74 

24 

36 

114 

51 51 

78 

26 

12 
15 

91 

132 

17 

1 

11 
8 

2 2 

9 

1 

35 

15 

6 
10 

22 

38 

94 

30 

45 

11 

96 

110 

15 

97 

28 

71 

31 

66 

34 

83 

43 

74 

23 

34 

113 

51 

37 

63 

23 

10 
13 

74 

123 

13 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Follow up Calls (Shielded) 

Follow-
ups due

Follow-
ups
comple
ted

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 3 of 6

P
age 27



MT Monitoring Stats

Total Number of Extremely Vulnerable Referrals 2484 cases

NOTE: From 28 April Alzheimer & Dementia have taken on all 'Red' case follow-up calls, except those 

where GBC had already commenced the follow up process.

0% 

3% 

10% 
0% 

75% 

12% 

Action required/Taken on Referrals (EV) 

RED Rating

AMBER rating

GREEN rating

Referred to A&D

Number not requiring contact

Number still requiring contact to be made

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 4 of 6

P
age 28



MT Monitoring Stats

53 

232 

0

50

100

150

200

250

No telephone number/ incorrect number Initial contact - no response

N
o

. R
e

fe
rr

al
s 

Number still requiring contact (EV) 

15 20 
6 0 0 

34 
52 

28 

4 1 

129 

203 

106 

13 
0 3 

24 
11 11 

24 
11 

0 
8 

0 

25 29 

8 
0 0 1 2 

11 15 20 
6 

32 
49 

27 

4 1 

116 

196 

96 

10 
0 3 

20 
8 11 

24 
11 

0 5 
24 29 

8 
0 0 1 2 6 

0

50

100

150

200

250

1
5

-A
p

r

1
6

-A
p

r

1
7

-A
p

r

1
8

-A
p

r

1
9

-A
p

r

2
0

-A
p

r

2
1

-A
p

r

2
2

-A
p

r

2
3

-A
p

r

2
4

-A
p

r

2
5

-A
p

r

2
6

-A
p

r

2
7

-A
p

r

2
8

-A
p

r

2
9

-A
p

r

3
0

-A
p

r

0
1

-M
ay

0
2

-M
ay

0
3

-M
ay

0
4

-M
ay

0
5

-M
ay

0
6

-M
ay

0
7

-M
ay

0
8

-M
ay

0
9

-M
ay

1
0

-M
ay

1
1

-M
ay

1
2

-M
ay

1
3

-M
ay

1
4

-M
ay

1
5

-M
ay

1
6

-M
ay

1
7

-M
ay

1
8

-M
ay

1
9

-M
ay

2
0

-M
ay

Follow up Calls (EV) 

Follow-ups
due

Follow-ups
completed

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 5 of 6

P
age 29



MT Monitoring Stats

Call Monitoring Data

TOTALS

No. Daily calls 2161

No. Initial EV Calls 2484

No. Shielded follow-up calls (scheduled) 1819 GRAND TOTAL 9036

No. Shielded follow-up calls (rolled over) 848  - ALL CALLS (APPROX.)
No. EV follow up calls (scheduled) 850

No. EV follow up calls (rolled over) 819

No. calls resulting from door knocks 55

27% 

23% 21% 

10% 

10% 

8% 

1% 

COVID Response - NHS Shielded and EV Residents - Call Monitoring Stats 

No. Daily calls

No. Initial EV Calls

No. Shielded follow-up calls (scheduled)

No. Shielded follow-up calls (rolled over)

No. EV follow up calls (scheduled)

No. EV follow up calls (rolled over)

No. calls resulting from door knocks

MT Monitoring Stats  20 May 2020 Page 6 of 6

P
age 30



C V  8

20 Mar

2020

27 Mar

2020

03 Apr

2020

10 Apr

2020

17 Apr

2020

24 Apr

2020

1 May

2020

8 May

2020

15 May

2020

3,969 4,926 5,767 6,317 7,256

C V  9

20 Mar

2020

27 Mar

2020

03 Apr

2020

10 Apr

2020

17 Apr

2020

24 Apr

2020

1 May

2020

8 May

2020

15 May

2020

1,436 1,197 1,370 1,529 1,703

Total residents receiving a Covid-19 support intervention via Customer Services

Total residents being supported through the Vulnerable Persons project 

C O M M U N I T Y   &   L E I S U R E   C O M M I T T E E 
Customer Services

O U T T U R N

O U T T U R N

Anita Tysoe

Page  1  of  2

New indicator

New indicator

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

17 Apr
2020

24 Apr
2020

1 May
2020

8 May
2020

15 May
2020

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

17 Apr
2020

24 Apr
2020

1 May
2020

8 May
2020

15 May
2020

P
age 31



C V  27

20 Mar

2020

27 Mar

2020

03 Apr

2020

10 Apr

2020

17 Apr

2020

24 Apr

2020

1 May

2020

8 May

2020

15 May

2020

251 553

Page  2  of  2

Kath Donald

O U T T U R N

C O M M U N I T Y   &   L E I S U R E   C O M M I T T E E 

Total reported Anti-Social Behaviour incidents 

Collected monthly Collected monthly

C O M M U N I T Y  S A F E T Y 

0

250

500

750

10 Apr
2020

15 May
2020

P
age 32



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Community & Leisure Cabinet Committee
Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee

Date: 3 June 2020
22 June 2020

Reporting officer: Director (Communities)

Subject: Post-COVID 19 Recovery for Gravesend Town Centre

Purpose and summary of report: 
To present a discussion document to assist with Post Covid-19 recovery Planning for 
Gravesend Town Centre.

Recommendations:
1. That the Committee reviews the report and comments on the actions identified for 

recovery.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report summarises the COVID-19 position in respect of public health 
restrictions at the time of writing and what is known in respect of relaxations and 
how those will impact Town Centres over time.

1.2 It also summarises some of the work that is taking place to establish frameworks 
for recovery of Town Centres post COVID-19 and includes early discussion as to 
initiatives that might be included in the Council’s own recovery planning for 
Gravesend Town Centre.

1.3 The Cabinet Committee is asked to review the report and comment on the actions 
being taken for recovery.

2. COVID-19 Recovery & Economic Impacts

2.1 The Government announced a three week ‘lock-down’ response to COVID-19 on 
23 March 2020 and a further three week extension to that, commencing 16 April 
2020.  The Government confirmed that any easing of measures could take place 
only if 5 tests are achieved:

Test 1 Making sure the NHS can cope;

Test 2 A ‘sustained and consistent’ fall in the daily death rate;

Page 33 Agenda Item 6



Test 3 Rate of infection decreasing to ‘manageable levels’;

Test 4 Ensuring a supply of tests and PPE can meet future demand;

Test 5 Being confident any adjustments would not risk a second peak. 

2.2 On 11 May 2020, the Government published ‘Our Plan to Rebuild:  the UK 
Government’s COVID-19 recovery strategy’.  This set out the adjustments to be 
made to social distancing controls step by step over the coming months in 
accordance with what happens to the spread of the virus, with the priority of 
ensuring safety.  This plan was accompanied by specific guidance on what 
business and venue closures are required by law to remain in place and the 
exceptions to that.

2.3 The strategy and guidelines have a direct impact on which and when more 
businesses open in Town Centres and when. 

2.4 A variety of reports have begun to assess the impact that COVID-19 could have 
on the economy.  The Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR, 14 April 2020) 
analysis indicated a 35% impact on GDP in the second quarter 2020 and a quick 
‘bounce back’, based on an assumption of public health restrictions through to the 
end of July 2020, with a partial lifting from late May.  Elsewhere, it is reported that 
the economic impact could be far more prolonged, with many more people 
unemployed and social distancing in some shape or form being in place for the 
foreseeable future and at least until a vaccine or other treatment measures are in 
place.

2.5 Hence, it is very likely that COVID-19 restrictions will continue to have a significant 
impact on what businesses can open and what gatherings and social interaction 
can take place over many months to come.

3. COVID-19 Recovery Frameworks

3.1 Nationally, a number of frameworks are being worked on to help recovery of Town 
Centres post COVID-19.

3.2 The Institute of Place Management has developed a Time to Act Now Framework 
based on ‘traditional’ recovery approaches.  This states that: 

3.2.1 COVID-19 is altering and potentially displacing the social and economic 
roles of cities and towns.

3.2.2 Strict public health measures mean that the majority of service-based and 
non-food retail, hospitality and leisure business premises remain closed to 
reduce social contact.

3.2.3 Footfall has declined significantly in Town Centres since the lock-down 
was announced 23 March 2020.

3.2.4 Disruption has triggered a first wave of store closures nationally impacting 
most fragile businesses.

3.2.5 More disturbance is predicted with an economic shock to GDP, business 
bankruptcies and many jobs at risk.  It has to potential to have a significant 
impact on the attractiveness of towns and cities – reduced offer, less 

Page 34



demand for town centre businesses.  Fundamental changes in consumer 
behaviour will have occurred with more households dependent on home 
deliveries, exercise taking place away from town centre gyms, more 
employees working from home and socialising online.  There will be fewer 
tourists and visitors to towns due to extended travel bans.  Plans for Town 
Centre transformation may be put on hold, with both public and private 
funding needed for surviving the crisis.

3.3 The Time to Act Now Framework concludes that: 

3.3.1 It is unclear what the ‘pandemic town’ will look like post outbreak.

3.3.2 Recovery requires immediate action ‘to develop the necessary capacity for 
recovery and then longer-term transformation’.

3.4 A four stage recovery framework is proposed:

3.5 Towns, places and businesses will re-open for business, but it is suggested by 
The Retail Group that those Towns that do not have a clear plan for recovery are 
likely to take longer to return to successful trading and optimal customer 
experience.  Many town centre businesses have been forced to close or remodel 
their trading arrangements.  They also need support to help them adapt to the 
new post shutdown trading environment.

3.6 We will need to quickly and effectively re-open for business as soon as the 
enforced closure comes to an end.  A clear and collective plan will be essential for 
Gravesham as we seek to welcome consumers back and stimulate business 
growth.

3.7 The Retail Group has set out the following priorities to help achieve this:-

3.7.1 Improve the appeal and attraction of town centres for the benefit of all 
business operating there

Page 35



4

3.7.2 Help and support retail businesses that have had to temporarily close 
and/or reorganise their trading model;

3.7.3 Provide a managed, rapid and effective recovery for town centres after the 
extended period of shutdown;

3.7.4 Optimise the overall experience for consumers on returning to use town 
centres.

3.8 A number of surveys are being undertaken nationally at the present time to gauge 
impacts and changing views on Town Centres.  Initial indications are that people 
are missing the opportunities that Town Centres present to meet with families and 
friends and to be part of larger gatherings, more so than the ability to shop; a 
strong affection for local areas remains and people want to support local business 
more; but, they are concerned about Covid-19 health impacts and will spend less 
time in shops, but more time outside.  They are therefore looking for cleaner, 
greener, outdoor environments to socialise within.

4. Gravesend Town Centre Impact

4.1 A number of ‘essential’ retailers and services have remained open in Gravesend 
Town Centre during the pandemic - those selling food and drink, including 
supermarkets, convenience stores, off licences and some take-aways, the post 
office, pharmacies, opticians and vets.   There has been a similar pattern in the 
local centres.  Larger supermarkets and petrol filling stations have also remained 
open.

4.2 Town Centre footfall has fallen dramatically with a 58% decline between the week 
commencing 16 March and 20 April 2020.   For the year to date (May 2019 to May 
2020) Gravesend has experienced a 31.6% decline in Town Centre footfall, 
compared with 37.0% for the South East and 38.0% for the UK.  With a relaxation 
of social distancing measures a very slight increase in footfall has begun to be 
seen and this will continue to be monitored over the coming weeks and months.   

[$-800]Monday, March 16, 2020[$-800]Monday, March 23, 2020[$-800]Monday, March 30, 2020[$-800]Monday, April 06, 2020[$-800]Monday, April 13, 2020[$-800]Monday, April 20, 2020[$-800]Monday, April 27, 2020[$-800]Monday, May 04, 2020[$-800]Monday, May 11, 2020
0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

80000

90000

100000

Gravesend Town Centre Weekly Footfall

Page 36



5

4.3 It is too early to report on the impact of Covid-19 on business closures and 
therefore changes in the number of vacancies in the Town Centre.

5. Planning for Town Centre Recovery

5.1 Teams within the Communities Directorate have developed the following 
approach to Town Centre Recovery:

5.1.1 Actions undertaken during the lock down

5.1.2 Planning for partial re-opening of the Town Centre

5.1.3 Celebration/Commemoration events going forward

5.1.4 Being part of the strategic plans for Kent

Actions Undertaken During Lock-down

Covid-19 Business Support

5.2 The immediate focus for the Council with regard to businesses has been to 
provide short term emergency support, acting as the contact for business grants, 
rates reliefs and other funding advice. 

5.3 Of the 1,099 businesses supported by the business grants scheme and the 100% 
business rates relief scheme for retail hospitality, leisure and nursery businesses, 
many of those are based within the Town Centre.  It is too early to know the extent 
to which the national Job Retention Scheme, Self-employment Income Support 
Scheme and Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan Schemes have helped local 
businesses to weather the storm.

Town Centre Maintenance and Deep Clean

5.4 Town centre cleansing and waste collection has continued to operate during the 
pandemic.  An early decision was also made to give the Town Centre a ‘spring 
clean’ and for the Brookvale Depot teams to undertake a deep clean alongside 
provision of on-going services and other key priorities.   This includes a deep 
clean of alley ways.  It is anticipated that new street cleaning machinery will be 
received in the next few weeks and that will obviously help with this priority.

5.5 All the benches in town are in need of some work and the Market team, who are 
not currently able to work in support of the Market operation, have removed the 
benches from the Town Centre, and are using the Market as a base for their 
repair and repainting.

5.6 In preparation for more retail units re-opening and to ensure social distancing 
rules are maintained, in the short term we will be removing a large amount of the 
benches from the town centre, so that we have sufficient room for a queuing 
system that is in accordance with government guidelines.

Dressing the Town Centre

5.7 In respect of planting in the Town, the annual flower scheme has not gone ahead 
this year as it has been impossible to engage business support in this scheme 
during the Covid-19 crisis.  Thoughts are being given to how to dress the Town as 
it reopens.

Page 37



6

5.8 Union flags in King Street, Windmill Street and New Road and bunting in the High 
Street were installed to commemorate VE Day and the Clocktower was list in red, 
white and blue for the duration.

Dressing the Civic Centre

5.9 The Civic Centre has been closed to the public since 24 March 2020 and despite 
a lot of activity still going on within the building, it initially looked like it is closed for 
business.  Messages have been added to the front and side of the building to 
demonstrate that that is not so.  As follows:

Cultural Initiatives

5.10 Event cancellations, venue and business closures and the current economic 
uncertainty are putting Gravesham’s culture and creative industries at an 
increased risk.  Nationally, there have been calls for additional support to this 
sector.

5.11 To help support our artist’s and cultural sector during this difficult times the 
following projects are being taken forward to brighten the Town, help in the short 

Page 38



7

term with our residents’ mental health and also to provide some paid work and 
commissions for local artists:

5.11.1 Knit a Rainbow – the Rainbow has been an iconic symbol during this time 
and it is proposed that much like the Poppy project, that we ask residents 
to knit a rainbow.  A pattern for both knitting and crocheting has been 
found and we will send this out on social media.  The borough’s Urban 
Knitters have been busy testing out the pattern and are keen to get 
involved.  The rainbows will be collected and will form an art installation for 
display in the town centre, once we come out of lock down.   No cost for 
this project, only officer time and possibly some material at the end for 
displaying the rainbows.

5.11.2 Virtual choir – The Woodville ‘Make a Noise’ choir will produce an 
arrangement of a song and the individual members will film at home.  We 
will then use a film maker to pull this together and the film can then be 
distributed throughout our social media channels.  

5.11.3 The Wing Project – Images of family time, children’s creations, drawings 
etc., could be incorporated into a sculptural piece that could be displayed 
post lock down.  It is also felt that the images could also be turned into 
actual wings that are paraded as part of a Festival of Light parade and 
worn by outstanding members of the community that have helped during 
the crisis, NHS staff, supermarket workers, delivery drivers, Care home 
staff, Refuse collectors etc.   We have two local artists who have a great 
deal of experience in creating very large scale parade creations and we 
know that currently all work that they had has been cancelled. 

5.11.4 We are currently waiting for a project plan and once approved, we can 
start this inspirational project.

 

5.11.5 Design a Flag – we could put this out as a completion and have the best 
designs made into a flag which then could be flown in town at the start of 
the partial opening of the Town.  Once the art grant deadline is reached at 
the end of the month, we will look to promote this completion.

5.11.6 Digital reskilling (especially of independent businesses) - we could look to 
see whether there is something already available or that we can buy in to 
develop their skills.  Businesses may have time to do something on this at 

Page 39

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.pinterest.com/pin/267330927861427246/&psig=AOvVaw0CRdqQAyuSNpztoHveVtdE&ust=1586431497537000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCMDsy6vc2OgCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAP


8

this point in time and it would be great to get our business community and 
wider community skilled up.

5.11.7 Open Call to Artists and Creatives – to continue working with our local 
artists and creatives, the Council has invited local artists and creatives to 
react to the current situation with imaginative and engaging digital project 
proposals.  The proposals must encourage community participation whilst 
pertaining to the current lockdown guidelines.  The project can have a 
physical outcome if desired.

5.11.8 Submissions are encouraged from artists and creatives who live or 
regularly work within the borough, professional or amateur who have 
experience of working within the community and can deliver high quality 
and accessible projects.  Four projects will be commissioned, each 
awarded a fee of up to £1000.

5.11.9 The project proposal must achieve the following objectives:

5.11.9.1 To develop creative engagement opportunities for Gravesham 
communities during the lockdown period

5.11.9.2 Offer a high quality, stimulating and inclusive activity for all ages 
and abilities to engage with

Page 40



9

5.11.9.3 Be realistic and achievable

5.11.9.4 Develop their own artistic practice

Communications and Social Media activity

5.12 Maintaining business and customer relationships during the lock-down has been 
recognised as important in ensuring that they remain with you when coming out of 
the lock-down.  The Council has continued to communicate through all its media 
channels, including social media related to Visit Gravesend – posting of local 
images and ‘Do You Know…?’ initiatives, and to Gravesend Town Centre 
Facebook and Twitter.

6. Planning for Partial Opening of the Town Centre

6.1 Planning is underway in advance of more businesses and additional footfall 
coming back into the Town Centre.

6.2 The following is an overview of some of the work that is taking place and the 
initiatives being developed for incorporation into a recovery response for the Town 
Centre.  This is very much a starting point for discussion and these will be brought 
together into more detailed plan.

Social Distancing Measures

6.3 The Town Centre Manager has been contacting businesses in the Town to 
identify those which will be opening and when.  A varied pattern of re-openings, 
controls and numbers within premises is beginning to emerge with several 
retailers intending to reopen in June and some services likely to reopen in July.  
Some are dependent on phased re-openings, dictated nationally.  Others, 
including hair and beauty businesses have scope to control social distancing 
through advance booking systems.

6.4 Adherence to social distancing is the key issue for the Town.  Businesses are 
willing to manage access to their premises, but this presents issues for directions 
of queues and conflict with pedestrian routes in the street.

6.5 Measures will be put in place in respect of social distance reminder signage, 
pavement markings and consideration to additional staff in the Town to encourage 
adherence to the measures put in place.  Confirmation of extent and restrictions in 
place around outdoor seating is awaited from KCC.

6.6 A number of the larger stores in the Town already have measures in place with 
varied success and modifications have been made overtime, especially as footfall 
has increased.  Queueing systems are in place within Thamesgate and St 
George’s and a one way system, hand sanitizers, signage, additional queueing 
and staff oversight are planned for St George’s with re-openings at the beginning 
of June.  Such measures are more difficult to achieve in other parts of the Town 
Centre, especially New Road, Windmill Street and High Street, where there is less 
pavement space to accommodate systems.

6.7 Steps are also being taken to modify the Traffic Regulation Order for the Town 
Centre to make New Road free of traffic between 7am and 7pm.  This is being 
worked through in respect of enforcement, staffing and impact on deliveries.

Page 41



10

Business Development Initiatives

6.8 The emerging economic development strategy for the Borough was due to be 
reported to Strategic Environment Cabinet Committee in March, at the onset of 
the COVID-19 crisis.  Its priorities were discussed at an earlier meeting of the 
Committee and many of these remain pertinent to recovery of the Town Centre:

6.8.1 Place branding – Gravesham’s advantages, especially connectivity for 
businesses remain unchanged and there will be some opportunities to 
benefit individuals and businesses who wish to work within ease of access 
to London, yet reduce travel into Central London.  Advancing place 
branding work therefore remains a priority and can be used to engage 
local businesses, investors and other key stakeholders in discussions 
about the future of the Town and wider economy. 

6.8.2 Land and premises for businesses – a fundamental review of demand and 
supply issues and impact on appetite for investment generally will need to 
take place in response to Covid-19.  Demand for workspace may change 
with additional requirements for space local to home, rather than in 
London.  This may be an opportunity for innovation in social distance 
designed work spaces in a modular form, perhaps making use of vacant 
spaces within the Town Centre to help shape a new Town Centre.

6.8.3 Investment in physical and digital infrastructure – as investment plans for 
the Town Centre move forward, then these can only reinforce its 
advantages as a place to live, work and enjoy.  The case can be 
developed for a ‘digital hub’ in the Town Centre as a resource for those 
businesses, especially within the creative and digital sector, which require 
access to faster broadband.

6.8.4 Supporting enterprise – local business networking is valued as part of the 
local support networks.  The Council has supported the work of the Kent & 
Medway Growth Hub during the COVID-19 crisis and there will continue to 
be a demand from businesses for advice, support and access to finance.  
Priorities include:

6.8.4.1 Consistent two-way communication with local businesses 
especially if the impacts from COVID-19 are to be prolonged and 
varied, e.g. social media activity and regular surveys to identify 
issues facing businesses and opportunities for encouraging 
recovery.

6.8.4.2 Reviewing the Council’s collaborative work with local businesses 
and new partnership arrangements for the Town Centre and wider 
economy.

6.8.4.3 Building upon the close cross-departmental work in support of 
businesses that has taken place during the emergency response 
to COVID-19.

6.8.5 Skills & access to local employment opportunities - a major review will be 
required of the local picture for employment and skills depending upon the 
impact on businesses, specific sectors and the unemployment position.  
The Borough is already experiencing a significant increase in 
unemployment (5.8% April 2020) – a rise of 1,475 people unemployed 
(64.1% increase) over the month March to April 2020.  Taking stock with 

Page 42



11

employers and skills and training organisations will be important in the 
months ahead, to understand what is actually happening on the ground 
and how to get people back into available work.

6.8.6 Rural economy – taking stock will also be important to understand the 
impacts of CIOVID-19, especially on workforce availability in support of the 
local food sector.

6.8.7 Sustainable economic growth – major refocus and opportunities to 
encourage sustainability given the restructuring likely to take place in the 
economy generally, with less travel, revised supply chains, more 
homeworking and a clearer understanding of what impacts these can have 
on climate change, etc.

Click & Collect/Click & Drop

6.9 Within the Go Trade Project, officers had already begun to explore an option of a 
Click & Collect system in support of the Market.  Such an approach, possibly 
modified to allow for ‘click and drop’ in the current COVID-19 circumstances, is 
being reviewed.  It has the advantage of creating a collective digital shop window 
for local businesses, enabling browsing, booking and ecommerce for businesses 
to promote and sell their products or services.  This can be part funded by the Go 
Trade Project.

Art Installations

6.10 This will be a time when we can put a variety of art installations in and around the 
Town Centre to create activity and positive word-of-mouth communication about 
the Town once it can be more open for business again.  Whilst we don’t want to 
encourage the gathering of large crowds, we do want residents to start using the 
Town Centre again and an artists’ trail of installations could encourage residents 
visiting town to go into streets that they would possibly not normally use and 
perhaps encourage them into other shops.

6.11 Another idea would be to use artists to come up with some imaginative social 
distancing drawings for roads and pavements, which will still be needed at this 
stage.

Food & Drink Trails

6.12 Subject to re-openings of some food restaurants and maintenance of social 
distancing measures, a number of tours have started to be developed, including 
“A Taste of India” and “Food & Ale”.

Exercise & Fitness Initiatives

6.13 Relaxation of public health restrictions will enable more opportunities for exercise, 
e.g. walking trails in and around the Town Centre, designed with social distancing 
in mind.

7. Celebrations & Commemorations Going Forward

7.1 Celebrations and Commemorations have a significant role to play in bringing the 
community back together and strengthening it post Covid-19.

Page 43



12

Arts Centre

7.2 We would hope that the Town’s celebrations could start with the opening of a new 
creative arts studio and gallery space in St. George’s, where a succession of 
small events can be hosted to publicise the new venue and encourage visits to the 
Town Centre.  This could include the possibility of an ‘artist in residence’ for a 
period of time, which would add something different to the Town Centre.

7.3 The Reef Group is working with the Council in respect of a design/fit-out.  It is 
hoped that such a venue will bring together and reinvigorate the art sector in 
Gravesham and whilst they will all have different disciplines they will come 
together to help support art and the cultural economy of the Town.

7.4 Following discussions a detailed brief is expected within the next 2 weeks.

Gravesend Borough Market

7.5 Steps are being taken for a trial reopening of the Market Hall and Food Court in 
early June, the priorities being a re-launch of the Saturday Market which was 
doing so well before lock down.

7.6 Consideration is being given to entertainment and arts and craft activities and a 
programme that will benefit the High Street/Queen Street areas, complementing 
the Market.

7.7 In other countries, Markets are one of the first premises to get approval during 
partial opening and it is important that this sector is ready to start trading at the 
appropriate time.  The National Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) 
has been giving careful thought to this.  A social media campaign is in 
preparation, ready to be launched as soon as a reopening can take place.  It will 
be packaged as Love Your Local Market and/or The Great British Market – ‘back 
at the heart of your community’.  The key themes will be around support your local 
businesses, traders and local food, etc.  NABMA are providing additional guidance 
to operators as they start-up.

7.8 Markets are likely to be a cost-effective means for business start-up and there is 
likely to be an increase in interest for that post-Covid-19.  As a result, additional 
resources are being planned to support start-ups, supported by Go Trade funding.

Rainbow Day

7.9 Young people bring in their rainbow drawings into town and we can pin them on a 
rainbow wall collage; children encouraged to dress as the Hero’s of the pandemic; 
awards for our hero’s, presented in a central location; Rainbow Balloon Arches in 
Windmill Street; A large Thank you message board which could be framed and 
presented to our local hospital; best rainbow image competition; find the Rainbow 
trail using local businesses; photo booth in town which can be used for ‘selfies’; 
Brass Bands/DJ music in town.

Commemorations

7.10 Given the impact of Covid-19, the council will work with the faith communities to 
devise an appropriate commemoration event.  The timing for this and an 
appropriate setting for this will depend on future adjustments made to social 
distancing controls as part of the national recovery strategy.

Page 44



13

8. Being part of the strategic plans for Kent

8.1 As part of the Resilience work undertaken across Kent and Medway, the recovery 
phase, led by KCC Economic Development, is being planned around 3 scenarios: 

8.1.1 Scenario 1: OBR reference case – sharp impact on output in 2020 Q2; 
rebounds in second half of the year; strong return to growth in 2021.  
Assumes that Government intervention is successful, although 
unemployment will still rise and labour market recovery will be slow.

8.1.2 Scenario 2: Recovery, relapse, growth – the economy is slower to 
rebound, due to varied pattern of restrictions/relaxations, ongoing 
Government support to the economy, weak demand, cautious consumer 
behaviour, etc.

8.1.3 Scenario 3: Great depression – prolonged loss of output, weak demand, 
over-capacity and high unemployment.  Mitigation measures limited impact 
on generating sustained growth.

8.2 Panels are being set up to test possible responses with a Kent focus. 6 panels 
from different sectors are being brought together to brainstorm around each of the 
scenarios and results will be shared across a wider audience. This will happen 
during May/June.

8.3 It is felt that large scale events should not start until the lead in to Christmas of this 
year, based on data from other countries, KCC predictions and also not wanting to 
bring together large crowds of people which could lead to another peak of the 
virus.  This would mean that we would mean that large scale events will not be 
justified until very late in the year.

8.4 The council will continue to input into these discussions as part of its wider 
resilience responsibilities.

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 Our Plan to Rebuild:  the UK Government’s COVID-19 recovery strategy (May 
2020) - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-
governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy.

9.2 Government guidance in respect of business and premises closures (May 2020) 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/further-businesses-and-premises-to-
close). 

9.3 Time to Act Now Framework (Institute of Place Management, 2020) 
(http://blog.placemanagement.org/2020/04/02/the-time-to-act-is-now-a-framework-
for-post-covid-19-recovery-for-our-towns-and-cities/).  

Anyone wishing to inspect background papers should, in the first place, be directed to 
Committee & Electoral Services who will make the necessary arrangements.

Page 45

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close
http://blog.placemanagement.org/2020/04/02/the-time-to-act-is-now-a-framework-for-post-covid-19-recovery-for-our-towns-and-cities/
http://blog.placemanagement.org/2020/04/02/the-time-to-act-is-now-a-framework-for-post-covid-19-recovery-for-our-towns-and-cities/


IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal No implications. 

Finance and Value 
for Money 

Expenditure will come from within existing budgets or the case for additional budget 
through usual budgetary processes.

Risk Assessment All activities will be risk assessed.
More broadly, without positive action to promote the vitality and viability of the Town 
Centre, together with actions to ensure public safety within the Town Centre there 
is likely to be decline rather than recovery.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
     

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
     

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
     

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
     

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan # Place

Crime and Disorder Community safety is a key aspect of maintaining the vitality of the Town Centre. 

Digital and website 
implications

These will be key to communicating the strengths and benefits of the Town Centre.

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

No implications at this stage.

Page 46

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: Community and Leisure Cabinet Committee

Date: 3 June 2020

Reporting officer: Service Manager, Customer & Theatre Services
General Manager, The Woodville

Subject: A Cultural Strategy for Gravesham 2020-30

Purpose and summary of report: A discussion paper on the development of an arts 
and culture strategy for the Borough.

Recommendations:
1. That Committee  agree the focus of this Strategy recognising that it is a 

work in progress and is still in the consultation process.

1. Introduction

1.1 Gravesham is blessed with a vibrant arts and entertainment offer as well as many 
significant cultural assets. With a significant number of well-established festivals 
and parades taking place in the town and the surrounding areas, it is an area that 
enjoys a lively cultural scene. In addition Gravesham is home to many exciting 
artists and creatives with more planning to relocate to this area. All this has been 
achieved through the support and guidance of Gravesham Borough Council over 
many years and this foundation gives us the opportunity to create a strategy which 
will firmly establish Gravesham as a leading artistic and cultural hub for North 
Kent and the County.

2. Current Situation

2.1 This strategy is being prepared in the midst of an unprecedented upheaval of all of 
our lives, and the ways in which the arts respond to this upheaval will shape our 
cultural landscape for years to come. This gives us an opportunity to respond to 
the covid crisis with a living document capable of flexibility and innovation as the 
situation demands. The effects of covid 19 on the arts and creative industries 
have been well documented and many artists and creatives are struggling for 
survival. However, the creative responses to the crisis from both the arts 
community and the wider population, have made it very clear that access to arts, 
crafts and culture either as a participant or as a member of the audience is of vital 

Page 47 Agenda Item 7



2

importance. The National Theatre live screenings on Youtube are regularly 
reaching global audiences of over 20 million and other online content is plentiful, 
varied and well supported. This strategy is being created at a time when people 
are not only accessing arts and culture in unprecedented numbers they are doing 
so in new and innovative ways. The ways in which we invite participation and 
create our offer in this environment allows greater freedom and innovation over 
the next 10 years. 

3. The Strategy

3.1 Vision 

Our vision for Gravesham is:

In 10 years time Gravesham will be the cultural and artistic hub of North Kent. 
Defined by a thriving artistic community and a diverse innovative and accessible 
programme of events for residents and visitors to enjoy.

3.2 Priorities

3.2.1 Growing a cultural and creative community 

 Establishing overarching recognition of the value of arts and culture in the borough 
throughout council policy. 

 Recognising arts and culture as a way of bringing communities together.
 Developing a cluster of “Make It” spaces – phase one creation of an arts venue in St 

Georges is in the planning stages. 
 Establishing an Artist in Residence scheme with a focus on working with the 

community.
  Developing the skills and diversity or our cultural workforce and that of our partners.
 Creating a volunteer network to support cultural events and activities and develop 

knowledge within the sector.

3.2.2      Supporting and developing artists and creatives

 Establishing a grant funding programme for local artists and creatives that can make 
a real difference to the work that is produced.

 Supporting local artists and organisations to leverage additional funding from national 
bodies to support work developed in and for Gravesham. 

 Creating a directory of assets, artists and creatives to establish joined up thinking 
within the sector, greater inclusivity for all groups and better understanding of the 
offer in the community.

 Ensuring that the live experience remains central to the programme of events at our 
venues, whilst learning from and embracing digital platforms.

3.3.3    Vibrant and aspirational arts and cultural events programme

 Building on existing programmes to establish annual festival of arts and culture in the 
summer months.

 Accessing other funding streams to build in resilience and sustainability of our offer.
 Ensuring that the diversity that defines the borough is reflected in all our activities.

Page 48



3

 Encouraging and supporting the enthusiasm for accessing culture across new 
platforms to develop accessible live/as live festivals.

 Establishing a culture card that affords local people access to cultural events and 
assets and receive promotion information. 

 Ensuring all events are working toward a low carbon borough.

3.3.4   Enhancing and promoting our assets and heritage.

 Enhance, promote and protect our cultural assets, open spaces and unique heritage.
 Embed creative delivery and learning opportunities into our open spaces and built 

heritage locations.
 Developing an annual series of events that showcase our unique heritage in an 

innovative way.
 Establishing new theatre spaces for Gravesham that are fit for purpose and 

community hubs for a borough with culture at its core whilst ensuring a focus on high 
quality accessible art content.

 Developing a cultural environment that is no longer solely confined by access to 
buildings and venues; one that can occupy a digital space creatively.

 Enable our built heritage locations to enhance the visitor experience by developing 
exciting and engaging displays, exhibitions and interpretation.

3.3.5   Developing our children and young people creatively

 Working with youth groups to ensure that our young people are given the chance 
to work effectively within the creative industries

 Developing a specific funding stream of grants for young people. With grant 
funding accessed through GBC budgets and leveraged additional support from 
external organisations.

 Working with schools and young people to develop theatre makers of the future 
and encouraging new working practices including the digital platforms.

 Working with artists and creatives in the borough to develop an 
educational/learning offer within their cultural delivery programme.

 Working with schools to enable all young people to experience live/as live 
performance through our programmes and workshops.

4. Financial

4.1 It is essential that our strategy is aspirational and ambitious with meaningful 
targets to support and grow our arts and culture offer. Whilst this is not confined to 
financial support it is important that sufficient and consistent funding is put in place 
to achieve our vision.

4.2 Potential funding requirements will become clearer as the strategy is developed. 
Consideration will also given to how Gravesham can attract external funding to 
support delivery of the strategy

5. Recommendation

5.1 That following discussion, the vision and initial priorities are supported by the 
Committee going forward through this consultation process.

Page 49



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal There are no legal implications. This is a discussion paper setting out the vision and 
priorities of the emerging Arts and culture strategy

Finance and Value 
for Money 

There are no financial requirements at this time, although budgetary provision for 
the delivery of the strategy will need to be considered

Risk Assessment The Strategy aims to strengthen the position of Gravesham Borough’s art and 
cultural offer within North Kent.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
N/A

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
N/A

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
Yes – the art and culture strategy aims to be inclusive and widen access to 
creative arts and culture across the Borough 

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan #2 Place – Enhance the borough’s cultural offer

Crime and Disorder This is a discussion paper only

Digital and website 
implications

None

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

N/A

Page 50

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Coronavirus: Cabinet Portfolio Impact
	Appendix 2 Community Response Statistics A
	Appendix 3 COVID 19 - SHIELDED AND EXTREMELY VULNERABLE PERSONS
	Appendix 4 COVID-19 Indicators - Community  Leisure

	6 Post-COVID 19 Recovery for Gravesend Town Centre
	7 Arts & Culture Strategy for Gravesham

